
         
 
ADDENDUM #1  
ITB #:  2015002-CD-B 
West Market Street Retaining Wall Remediation ITB 
 
DATE:  September 4, 2014 
 
TO:  All Potential Bidders 
 
City of Harrisonburg’s West Market Street Retaining Wall Remediation ITB, is modified as follows: 
 
 
Attached as part of this addendum document are the meeting minutes from the Mandatory Pre-Bid Meeting on 
Wednesday, September 3, 2014 at 10:00am local time as well as the sign-in sheet from the Mandatory Pre-Bid 
Meeting. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
All other requirements, terms and conditions of the ITB remain unchanged.  
 
Addendum page must be signed and returned with your bid to acknowledge receipt of this addendum. 
 
 
___________________________________ 
Authorized Signature 
 
 
 
By:  Pat Hilliard, CPPB 
        Procurement Manager 
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Pre-Bid Conference Minutes:  West Market St. Retaining Wall Remediation 
Wednesday, September 3, 2014 at 10AM 

Location: Project Site 
 

1. Sign-In Sheet 
 

2. Introductions 
 

3. Important Dates: 
a. Bid Questions Due:  Wednesday, September 10, 2014 by 12:00 PM (noon). 
b. Bids Due:  Wednesday, September 17, 2014 by 12:00 PM (noon), to our Purchasing 

Department, located at the Municipal Building (345 South Main Street, Room 201, 
Harrisonburg, VA 22801).  Submit signed Bid Form, Bid Cover Sheet, Bid Security 
(5%), Contractor Eligibility & Registration, State Corporation Commission (SCC) 
Form, and Non-Collusion Affidavit. 

c. Project Completion:  Tuesday, November 25, 2014 or pay $250 per day, Liquidated 
Damages every day thereafter. 

d. eVA’s website seems to have issues with viewing the bid documents.  The 
documents are additionally uploaded to the City’s website, 
www.harrisonburgva.gov, which seems to be working. (Click “Bids and Proposals” 
to view bid documents.) 

 
4. Addenda: Sign and return with bid (if any are issued between now and the last day for 

questions). 
 

5. Requirements/ Instructions to Bidders: 
a. Bid Form 
b. Supplemental Forms 
c. Bid Bond 
d. City Business License 
e. Labor & Payment Bonds 
f. Insurance 

 
6. Project Description:  Replacement of approximately 50 linear feet of a failed stone 

retaining wall, with a new concrete retaining wall with a reconstructed stone wall as a 
veneer. Composite wall has a maximum height of approximately 9.5 feet above grade.  
Work to include all required excavation and earthwork to stabilize the soil, prior to 
installing a reinforced cast in place concrete cantilevered retaining wall with weepholes.  
The existing limestone blocks from the failed portion of the wall are to be salvaged, cut, 
and used to build a freestanding limestone wall in front of the concrete wall, which shall 
mimic the finish and mortar joints at the undisturbed portion of the existing limestone 
retaining wall.  Additional stone is available at the site to supplement that from the failed 
wall.  If additional limestone blocks are required, beyond what is available at the stock pile, 
Contractor must supply from a source, approved by the Engineer, which matches the 
existing finish of the wall.  Topsoil, ground cover and seeding shall be placed as appropriate 
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to restore all disturbed areas.  A wrought iron fence sits atop the slope and must be 
protected and/or re-installed if removal is required to complete work.   
 

7. Project Conditions: 
a. Site is rocky, and also has underground boulders. 

 
b. Private property line at fence. Owner of the adjacent property is OK with the 

temporary dismantling of the fence, if it is required for excavation, but we must 
protect the fence (it was recently repainted, etc) and also reinstall it to its original 
location and plumbness. 

 
c. Contractor has options on how to proceed with excavation.  Alternate excavation 

methods are acceptable.  
 

d. Need to be mindful of existing wall and stairs at all times.  Existing structures should 
be protected and stabilized during construction. 

 
e. Contractors were directed to view the quality and quantity of the stockpiled stone.  

It is noted that the stone pillars and additional non-shrinkwrapped stone is all 
available for use. 

 
f. The City is treating this site like a historical site, as it is a prominent landmark at one 

of Harrisonburg’s entrances.  The City feels it is important to repair this wall in as 
close to its original form as possible. 

 
g. Seeding between the wall and fence is not required, as the Owner of the adjacent 

property intends to plant juniper plantings.  All other disturbed areas (namely 
above the fence or below the wall) would need to be seeded.  Adequate stand of 
grass is required before full payment for seeding will be released. (May not receive 
full payment for seeding, until next spring.) 

 
h. Per Plan notes, the Contractor has the option to make the stone wall a freestanding 

wall, or to reduce the thickness of the stone and possibly anchor or grout the stone 
to the face of the proposed concrete retaining wall.   

 
8. Questions 

Q: Are there Specs on the concrete? 
A: Yes.  Review Specification Section 03300, as well as the notes on the Plans.  

Concrete wall footing should be 3000 psi, and the wall stem should be 
4000 psi. 

 
Q: Will the grass area be open for staging? 
A: Yes, the area is City property and will be available for full project use. 
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Q: Will the Contractor be responsible for traffic control? 
A:  Yes.  It is at the discretion of the Contractor as to whether or not a lane 

closure is deemed necessary.  At least one lane must remain available for 
public use.  Refer to Specification Section 02701 for additional Traffic 
Control questions. 

 
Q: Are only the shrink-wrapped pallets of stone available for use? 
A: Everything is available for use, even if it isn’t shrink-wrapped.  It is the 

City’s expectation that any leftover pieces of stone at the end of the 
project will be palleted and shrink-wrapped similarly to the current 
condition. 

 
Q: Was consideration given for obtaining Building Permits? 
A: Yes.  Moreover, as our office oversees the issuing of Building Permits, we 

will work internally to expedite that process.  It is noted that excavation 
work can be done while the building permits are being processed and 
reviewed. 

 
Q:  What is the anticipated timeline after bids are turned in? 
A: Barring issues with contractor qualifications, our office will issue and post 

a Notice of Award within a few business days after the close of bids.  The 
Successful Bidder then has 10 days to return the signed Agreement and 
other required documentation.  From there the process can be expedited 
to hold the Pre-Construction meeting and begin construction. 

 
Q: If there is solid rock below ground level, can we dowel and epoxy into that 

instead of pouring the footing? 
A: Conditions at footing level may allow for design changes during the time of 

construction, in which case Owner and Contractor will negotiate changes 
through the processes described within the contract documents. 

 
Q: Is any pointing required? 
A: Yes, especially near the curved walls/stairs, as observed in the field today. 
 
Q: Do existing water lines run through the grassy area in front of the existing 

stone wall? 
A: No.  The water line runs under the street, approximately 6 feet off the 

curb. 

City of Harrisonburg, Virginia ITB #2015002-CD-B Page 4 of 5



City of Harrisonburg, Virginia ITB #2015002-CD-B Page 5 of 5


	Pre-Bid Conference Meeting Minutes.pdf
	Pre-Bid Conference Minutes:  West Market St. Retaining Wall Remediation




